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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, DECEMBER 18, 2013, 9:23 A.M.

THE COURT: Case Number C278699, State of Nevada versus Wilburt
Hickman.

THE DEFENDANT: Here, Your Honor.

THE COURT: | show Mr. Hickman in custody with his counsel, Mr.
Posin.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. POSIN: Good morning, Your Honor.

THE COURT: This is the time set for sentencing. Is there any legal
cause or reason we cannot proceed?

MR. POSIN: No, there is not.

THE COURT: Thank you. And, of course, Mr. Hickman was found
guilty by virtue of a jury verdict as to Counts 9, 10, 11, 12,13, 14, 15, 16, and 17.
And the jury hung on Counts 1 through 8, which — and they were then dismissed by
the State with prejudice.

So by virtue of the guilty verdicts as to Counts 9 through 17, | hereby
adjudge you guilty of those offenses.

And State.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you, Your Honor.

So, Your Honor, today is December 18", 2013. That's not — the State’s
position is that it's interesting that it's this date because this is the three-year
anniversary of when the defendant took his Cadillac and drove through a church on
the Sunday before Christmas. It's the exact same day. So it’s fitting that he should

be sentenced on this day.
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This case in a lot of ways encapsulates — actually — and, Your Honor,

before | begin | apologize, but | need to approach with just the certified judgments of

convictions.

convictions.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

MR. HAMNER: Can | approach, Your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. HAMNER: Thanks.

THE COURT: Thank you.

And has defense counsel seen these?

MR. POSIN: No, Your Honor, but if they're just certified —

THE COURT: Would you like to review them? Make sure that —

MR. POSIN: | don’t really need to if they're just certified judgments of

THE COURT: | want to make sure that you feel they're in order.
MR. POSIN: They seem in order, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. HAMNER: Your Honor, as | was saying, this case in a lot of ways

essentially encapsulates his entire criminal history, what he’s done. He’s 60 years

old, but in a lot of ways it reflects kind of a history of the crimes that he has. This

defendant in this case, when he is angry and he is upset, he lets his anger and his

rage get the best of him, and that’'s what happened here.

If you look at his record, he’s got three felony convictions, four gross

misdemeanor convictions, 17 misdemeanor convictions. They involve things like

violence and anger, which is evidenced by the fact that he has multiple battery

domestic violence. He attacks his loved ones. So much so that it rose to a felony
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offense at one point.

He has issues with authority. In this case, as we know, the church very
politely, multiple times, told him, sir, you need to leave but he wasn't — essentially
wasn’t having that. That's also reflected in the fact that he has been arrested for
evading a police officer in the past.

He has issues with substance abuse and alcohol. We know that even
though it didn’t come out at trial it became clear that he had been drinking. He has
multiple convictions, felonies and otherwise, for using drugs. I’'m sure alcohol’s
played a part in all this throughout his life.

But the bottom line is, Your Honor, when this gentleman is told
something he’s not happy with it manifests itself in the worst way possible. And you
would think at 60 years of age that maybe if he does lash out and commit crimes
that it would tail off, but this is essentially the penultimate of what he did. | mean, of
all his crimes this is by far the worst.

Now | know the jury in this case hung, but there were essentially just a
couple of holdouts. And if —and you listen to the facts in this case, the State is
confident, even though we decided not to retry him on the attempt murder counts,
there’s no question he tried to kill these people on that day, because he deliberately
got in his car, he turned his wheels, not just towards one person individually, which
is the first person he turned his wheels to, which was Allen Burse, the security
guard, who, upon asking him a second time, you need to leave, he cut his wheels at
him and he gunned that car, and you heard that from witness after witness after
witness.

He wanted Allen Burse dead. There’s no other reason to take off in a

2,000 pound vehicle at an unarmed human being. There's simply no point, other
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than to severely hurt them and try to kill them, and that's what he wanted to do. But
he didn’t stop there. There was a crowd of people. Everyone talked about five to
seven people standing outside of this church. He then continued to drive through
there. He didn’t honk, he didn't brake, he didn't swerve to get out of the way.

| mean, their testimony, witness after witness after witness was uniform
as to the path that he took. Why? Because he was angry at the church. He didn’t
care who he injured at that point. And he succeeds at hitting a little girl and her
mother. He hit the little girl so hard he knocked her out of her shoes, causing a
panic. You heard multiple people saying things like they thought the child was stuck
underneath the car.

He blew open the doors that were made of metal and lodged his
Cadillac halfway through the church. And the crazy part about this was is that when
he went through the church he didn’t stop. He didn’t apologize. In fact, everyone
heard the wheels were continually being spun as if he's gunning the engine. They
had to physically climb in and pry him off the steering wheel of the car as he's
saying things like, I'm gonna kill all of you. You remember Washington Thompson,
who had never even met the man up to this point, who was one of the security
guards, he said you're next.

It is unequivocally clear that he wanted to harm these people and harm
this church community, and he did it at a time when, frankly, you shouldn’t even be
thinking of things like that. They were there to worship, they were there for the
Christmas season, and he ruined it. He simply ruined it because he didn't want to
see — he wanted to see his daughter, who wanted nothing to do with him, was
actually so afraid of seeing him show up at her church that she left and told security,

I'm afraid | have to leave. And they said no, we'll let her leave, you can go — no, no,
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| can’t even be here. That's how terrified she was of her own father. And his
reaction when they just did their job was to torment and try to commit — kill members
of their community. And that's simply unacceptable.

He certainly qualifies for habitual criminal treatment. And the State
would be asking for that. You can decide, Your Honor, whether you want it
adjudicated as the large or the small. | know that essentially he meets the bare
minimum for a large habitual criminal treatment.

But | think what's more important is that he has a history of violence.
He has a history of lashing out at authority. He has problems, obviously, with drugs,
apparently alcohol in this case.

But the terrifying thing about this is that at 60 years of age this is by far
the worst thing he's ever done. And it's simply because he let the — his anger get

the best of him, something that he may have to deal with for the rest of his life.

There's going to be plenty of times where things — people tell you things
that you don’t want to hear or tell you you need to do something you don't like. And
this is without question a horrific, horrific way to deal with your anger. You don't
take cars, drive them into churches at people trying to kill them just because they
didn’t let you in to see a daughter who wasn’t even on the church premises.

And that's why when you look at all of his crimes, and you look at his
behavior in this crime, this Court should have no confidence that this anger issue
that he has is going to subside. We even saw it through the course of the trial.

I've been with this case from the beginning. He lashed out at the preliminary
hearing, which came out during trial.

When the security guard, Allen Burse, talked about how | was so afraid
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of the guy that when | asked him to get in his car | walked backwards because |
thought something bad was going to happen, he literally yelled out in the middle of
court, that's because you almost broke my damn arm, and he was admonished not
to. Why? Because his anger was at such a peak at a preliminary hearing he
couldn’t even contain himself.

| think Your Honor probably noticed him during trial constantly fittering —
fidgeting, muttering under his breath at different points in time because his anger
was getting the best of him. And | think we've even seen post trial his frustrations
and his behavior came out here just as recently as the last court appearance.

So we have evidence here, Your Honor, that this is not really going to
change. This is who Mr. Hickman is. When he is angry and he is upset it manifests
itself, and that should give the Court great pause.

Now, Parole and Probation here has recommended that only two of the
counts be run consecutive to each other. They wanted the count of the little girl,
Anyla Hoye, and her mother, Anneesah Franklin, the two people who were hit and
sent airborne by the defendant, to be run consecutive.

The State would ask that that doesn’t really encapsulate all the things
that happened here. The defendant didn't just hit one singular group of people or
aim at one singular group of people. The testimony is abundantly clear that Allen
Burse, the first security guard, was nowhere near Anneesah Franklin and Anyla
Hoye, but that was his original target.

And with that in mind the State would ask that he be adjudicated under
the habitual statute but that be the first sentence that's pronounced and it be run
consecutive to Anneesah Franklin, who was actually hit and sent airborne, and

Anyla Hoye, who also was hit and had her foot broken. Those should all be run
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consecutive.

But that doesn’t even address the other people who were standing
outside of the church that fall under these assault statutes, people like Washington
Thompson, Marquetta Jenkins. It also doesn’t address the people inside the church)|
like Sharon Powell, Tiffany Trass, Rahmeka Adams. And it also doesn’t address all
the other people who were there that experienced this.

For example, Your Honor, Rahmeka Adams told us that when she sat
inside the church and that car blew open those metal doors, she couldn’t find her
daughter, and when she heard everyone screaming, the child is under there, Ms.
Adams actually thought it was her daughter. We didn’t charge — we didn't bring her
daughter into this case, but certainly she was affected as well. She testified about
the fear that her own daughter went through as well.

You heard the testimony of Ms. Sharon Powell, who talked about how
she was standing in front of that metal door that was blown open, and she heard the
Lord say, step out of the way, and she took one step over and that car went through.
Ms. Powell, even though she didn't testify to it, and | can’t remember, but at least |
know from my conversations with her, told me that she was so terrified in the
aftermath of all this she didn’t go to Christmas services. And this church community
is very important to her, but she couldn’t bring herself to go because she was afraid
he was out there and in the community, because what he did had a lasting effect.

So the State also thinks it would be appropriate that all the other people
that he assaulted, and we believe tried to Kill but somehow succeeded, fortunately,
in not hitting them, they should be run consecutive as well, at least to one of the
victims.

And lastly we haven't even addressed the church. You didn’t hear an
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official church official, but he did a ton of damage monetarily to the church. And |
would imagine, even though we don't have a ton of speakers from the church
speaking here, | would imagine it did a pretty significant damage to that community
as well.

| can only imagine what the New Antioch Church had to go through,
knowing that their church, in a lot of ways, had been severely damaged and
destroyed the Sunday before Christmas. He damaged their ability, this community,
to worship the way they wanted to, and that's inexcusable, especially when it's
something as trivial over, your daughter’'s not here, you need to go.

Now | know there’s been — there was some evidence of alcohol, Your
Honor, and | wanted to at least address that to a certain extent. You know, it didn’t
come out at trial, but he was twice the legal limit. But being twice the legal limit is
not somebody who's fall-down drunk where they don’t what they're doing.

And | think when you heard the testimony of his behavior it became
abundantly clear that alcohol really wasn't an issue here. He was able to go in the
church under his own power, talk with no issue, walk out, park, re-park, when he
was kicked out the first time move his car closer, walk under his own power, come
in, very clearly announce what his intentions were as he reentered the church.

The issue here is Mr. Hickman's rage. This is not about drinking. And
that shouldn’t give him a free pass or lessen his sentence, because the only driving
force had nothing to do with the bottle; it had to do with the fact that he was really,
really angry because he doesn't like it when he's told things he's not supposed to
do.

When he wants to do something he's going to do it, and if it doesn't

happen and he doesn't get his way, well, then people are going to pay. And a lot of
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people, for no good reason whatsoever had to suffer because he didn’t get his way.

So with that, Your Honor, the State would respectfully submit this to
your discretion. We'd ask that it be — he be sentenced under the habitual statute,
and we'd ask that at least four of the counts be run consecutive. And with that the
State would submit.

THE COURT: All right. | want to put on the record what these
judgments of conviction are that are the basis for your seeking habitual offender
treatment.

And so the first one is case number C156759, a conviction filed
February 19", 1999, battery with substantial bodily harm, battery constituting
domestic violence and invasion of the home, appears. The second — that was the
information that was originally filed. And —

MR. HAMNER: Your Honor, | can read them out.

THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.

MR. HAMNER: | have them —

THE COURT: The judgment of conviction —

MR. HAMNER: - listed.

THE COURT: —was July 15™, 1999.

MR. HAMNER: That's —

THE COURT: Do you have the others? If you'd put them on the
record.

MR. HAMNER: | —sure, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I'd like to have a complete record.

MR. HAMNER: In 1985, in California, the defendant was convicted of

sale of a controlled substance under case number A772219. In 2000, here in

10
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Nevada, the defendant was convicted of stop required on a police officer in case
number C159356. And in 1999, in Nevada, the defendant was convicted for battery
domestic violence, third offense, in case number C156759.

THE COURT: Thank you.

And, Mr. Hickman, before Mr. Posin argues on your behalf, would you
like to address the Court?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, Your Honor. He really made me look like a
bad guy, Your Honor, but it's — I'm really not. Your Honor, I've lost a lot. | lost a car,
my home, family, jewelry, clothes, money. |lost my freedom. | even lost my cat,
Your Honor. I've been in custody for two years, Your Honor. | think I've paid my
debt to society, Your Honor. I'm very sorry about what happened.

You read my letters — | hope you read my letters that I've sent you. And
it really was a problem, Your Honor. And you read the story. And that's what it is,
Your Honor. I'm not a loose cannon going around trying to ruin people’s Christmas,
like he said. Your Honor, he spoke a lot of things, Your Honor, that were untrue, but
he had the floor, and, you know, he painted his picture. You read my story. And I'm
throwing myself at the mercy of the Court, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

Mr. Posin.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

You know, much of Mr. Hamner’s discussions seem to be really
addressing the counts that did not result in a conviction and had to do with what he
perceives as the defendant’s intention to harm and kill these people. The — Your
Honor, you heard all the testimony, you heard the evidence, and you saw all the

pictures. And this was a car that went, in a relatively short period of time, directly

11
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into these double doors of the church.

The — Mr. Hickman had gone in, had asked for his daughter. He'd been
told to leave. He came back in a second time, was escorted out, this time with his
hand behind his back. And he came in a third time, and that third entry into the
church is the basis for every count in this case, because he took his car and he went
into the church with that car.

Now, Mr. Hamner says there is absolutely no point, other than his anger
and his attempt to Kill these people and harm these people, no point why he would
be doing that. Seems to me there’s a very obvious and direct point that he was — he
had, which is he’d been sent out of the church, the second time with a hand behind
his back, and, yes, his anger came — got the better of him. | would agree with Mr.
Hamner on that; his anger got the better of him and he wanted to see his daughter.

Now, once he’s been escorted by security out of the church with an arm
behind his back, if he decides he'’s going to go see his daughter, the only way he's
going to get in now is he's going to go in with his vehicle, which he did. And you'll
remember the pictures, Your Honor, the pictures of his car wedged right into the
entryway of that church. He was trying to get into that church.

If his sole aim there had been that I'm trying to hurt people, well, he
could have done that without getting his car right so perfectly into the — into the
church. What he was aiming for, and what he got into, was the church. Why did he
want to get into the church, is because his daughter was there.

Now, Mr. Hamner says his daughter wasn't there. Maybe by the time
that happened she had left, but she was certainly there. The testimony was that she
had been there earlier, that she in fact had discussed with somebody from the

church the fact that he was there asking for her. So she was there, he knew that
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she was there, and he had some very important family matters that he — in his mind,
that he wanted to talk to her about.

Mr. Hamner says that the alcohol should not lessen his sentence. And |
would agree it's not a matter of lessening the sentence. It's not saying, okay, well,
he should get this sentence, but, you know, because of the alcohol, well, we'll drop
that down. It's that Your Honor has a range of sentences and is that an appropriate
factor to consider that, you know, this is from the discovery, that about three hours
later he had a .168 blood alcohol level? And remember this all happened early in
the morning, so we can presume that most of his alcohol consumption had taken
place overnight the night before. So was that a factor that went into his thinking or
his lack of thinking? Absolutely it was.

And through the trial and again here at sentencing, Mr. Hamner has
gone — has stressed again and again and again that he was able to walk on his own|
or that he didn't need to be held up, that he was able to get in the car, he was able
to drive it. His alcohol consumption was not to the extent that he was unable to do
those things, but alcohol does have the very-well-known effect of loosening your
iInhibitions and getting people to do — not getting people to do, but allowing them to
do things that they would think better of if they were sober, things that maybe they
want to do but they don’t clearly think through the consequences of them.

So what does that go to? Does that go — one of the things it goes to is
whose story here, Mr. Hamner’s or mine, is more consistent with the facts? Is — was
he — had he by that time forgotten about the very daughter that he had twice gone in
to ask for? And now the State asks you to believe that he’'s somehow kind of
forgotten about the daughter and now his only goal is to hurt people he’s never met

before. To me that seems like the unlikeliest of unlikely scenarios.
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What does seem likely is that he was trying to go get his daughter. Did
he think through, oh, okay, is that — is that a smart thing to do under any
circumstance? What was — what were his thought processes? Does the alcohol
affect that? Absolutely it does and it did. It did that day.

And so when he went into the church that time did a lot of people get
scared? Yes. Did a few of them get hurt? Absolutely. Was the way they got hurt
consistent with somebody whose aim was to kill them? The very worst injury that
anybody sustained here was one baby toe that got broken, one baby toe.

If his goal was actually to kill people would he have gone through the
door or he would have, you know, mashed somebody up against the wall, if that's —
if that was his goal? That was not his goal. His goal was to see his daughter, Your
Honor.

He made some poor decisions. And certainly in his letter to you he’s
talked about the problems that — you know, that he’'s had some problems and he's
made some poor decisions.

When we look at his priors, Mr. Hamner says that that was the bare
minimum to get into the large habitual criminal. Well, | would submit that there's a
lot of bare minimums that you can see throughout his history and including up until
this very case that went to trial in this courtroom.

Let’s take the felonies, the type of felonies there are. The — one of the
felonies is failure to — failure — was it — failure to stop for a police officer. It was stop
required on signal of a police officer. That's one of the felonies he’s convicted on.
I'd submit that that — it is a felony. I’'m not trying to say | think it should be excused
or that he was not guilty of it, he was, but as felonies go I'd say that's a bare-

minimum felony.

14
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Some of the issues in this case we have bare minimums. Was the —
was there substantial bodily harm”? The jury found that there was, and so,
obviously, Your Honor has to go with what the jury found and you can’t overrule the
jury. But in terms of what kind of harm might ever constitute substantial bodily harm
when you've got potentially somebody who is, you know, in a coma or maimed or in
constant pain throughout life, we have a girl who broke her baby toe, who testified
that it hurt for a couple of days. That's a bare minimum. What we've got is a bare
minimum on a lot of these things here, Your Honor.

He's got two prior felony convictions and one of them is this attempt to
— or a failure to stop for a police officer. Another is the domestic violence. I'd agree,
yes, he has some problems. Those problems have caused him to make bad
decisions and lose control.

But I'd again submit that as felonies go, in the scheme of things, in the
scheme of what might be a felony and what the Court might be looking for and
looking at, that can be distinguished from other more serious-type cases where
somebody does form some premeditation to either hurt somebody or steal
somebody [sic], and where they do that over a period of time with reflection and
deliberation. That's not what we have here with Mr. Hickman.

With Mr. Hickman’s history and this very incident, he does some stupid
things, but they're spur-of-the-moment stupid things. Not —and I'm not excusing
them, but I'm trying to put them in the context of the range of things that Your Honor
could look at.

We're not trying to reduce his sentence to something lower than
whatever the law calls for. The law calls for various sentences here. But | think it

would not be appropriate in this case to give him the habitual criminal, and | would
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ask Your Honor to run all of these counts concurrently.

| think this was one — you know, Mr. Hamner has done an excellent job
of going into each of these people, and certainly each of the people that were there
that day did experience this individually and separately from every other one of
them, but when we're looking at what Mr. Hickman did, he did one thing that
happened just almost instantaneously. He drove a couple of yards in a car into the
church. This whole thing was over in seconds.

And so while each person that was there had their own experience of it,
in terms of looking at his culpability, | would submit that it was really more of a
singular thing that he did and should be credited with — credited with what is
essentially a singular punishment and that the charges should be run concurrently.
So I'd submit it at that.

THE COURT: Thank you.

All right. | believe the reason that the jury hung on the attempt murder
is that | think it came across to at least some of those jurors that basically he didn’t
think about — you know, that he didn’t have the intent but he basically didn't really
care if he hit somebody or not. He decided that he was going to drive his car
through the church doors for whatever reason, whether he thought his daughter was
still there and he wanted to get in to see her or whether he was just upset with the
people who had ejected him out of the church and wouldn’t let him come in. And,
frankly, | don't really care which reason it was.

| can say to you, Mr. Hickman, you're just lucky that through the grace
of God that no one was killed, because certainly it wasn’t because it couldn’t have
happened. The conduct in this, really, there's not any excuse for this kind of

behavior at your age. And I‘'ve taken into consideration your letters, of course Mr.
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Posin’s arguments, and the fact that your convictions, some of them are quite old,
and the nature of them.

And so as to Count 9, battery with use of a deadly weapon — well, I'm
also assessing the $25 administrative assessment fee and the $150 DNA testing
fee. As to Count 9, battery with use of deadly weapon, | hereby adjudicate you
under the small habitual offender provision and sentence you to a minimum term of
60 months, a maximum term of 215 months. Restitution as to that count will be
ordered payable to Anneesah Franklin in the amount of $12,639.83.

As to Count 10, battery with use of deadly weapon resulting in
substantial bodily harm, | hereby order restitution in that count in the amount of
$3,263.73, payable to Anya — Anyla Hoye —

MR. HAMNER: Anyla.

THE COURT: — A-N-Y-L-A, H-O-Y-E, and adjudicate you as well under
the small habitual, sentencing you to a minimum term of 60 months and a maximum
term of 215 months. That will run consecutive to Count Q.

As to Count 11, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to
a minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months. That will run
concurrently to Count 10.

As to Count 12, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to
a minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months, concurrent to Count
11.

As to Count 13, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to
a minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months. That will run
concurrent to Count 12.

As to Count 14, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to

17
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a minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months. That will run
concurrent to Count 13.

As to Count 15, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to
a minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months, concurrent with
Count 14.

Count 16, assault with a deadly weapon, | hereby sentence you to a
minimum term of 16 months, a maximum term of 72 months, concurrent to Count
15.

And as to Count 17, burglary, | hereby sentence you to a minimum term
of 22 months, a maximum term of 96 months. And that will be concurrent with
Count 16. Restitution is ordered in that count in the amount of $10,369.04, payable
to Antioch Church of Las Vegas, Inc., a Nevada Non-Profit Corporation.

Credit for time served — let me see here.

THE CLERK: I'm sorry. Was his DNA waived? | didn't have —

THE COURT: No.

THE CLERK: Okay.

THE COURT: It wasn’t. He's got the DNA that was ordered.

THE CLERK: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. And today is the — what date? Today is the
1817

THE CLERK: The 18™, yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. So 14 days.

THE CLERK: And | don't suppose you could spell the church or give
me the paper and I'll look it up?

THE COURT: Just a minute. And for the clerk, Antioch Church is A-N-

18
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T-1-O-C-H.

Credit for time served, looks like 731 days. That's the 717 days
calculated on the PSI through December 4™, plus an additional 14 days until present
day.

Thank you.

MR. POSIN: Thank you, Your Honor.

PROCEEDING CONCLUDED AT 9:57 A.M.

* k Kk Kk k k k Kk Kk *k

ATTEST: |do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the audio-
video recording of this proceeding in the above-entitled case.

Ha ncpan

LARA CORCORAN
Court Recorder/Transcriber

19
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DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,
CASE NO. (278699
-VS-
DEPT.NO. V
WILBURT HICKMAN
aka WILLIAM HICKS
#0905481

Defendant.

JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION
(JURY TRIAL)

The Defendant previously entered a plea of not guilty to the crimes of COUNT 1
- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON Category B Felony in
violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT MURDER|
WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON Category B Felony in violation of NRS 200.010,
200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A
DEADL? WEAPON Gategory B Felony in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330,
193.165; COUNT 4 — ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

Category B Felony in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 5 —

ATTEMPT \ DEADLY WEAPON Category B Felony in
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violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165, of COUNT 6 —~ ATTEMPT
MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON Category B Felony in violation of NRS
200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165; COUNT 7 — ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF
A DEADLY WEAPON Category B Felony in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030,
193.330, 193.165; COUNT 8 — ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON Category B Felony in violation of NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330, 193.165;
COUNT 9 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in
‘violation of NRS 200.4810; COUNT 10 — BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony) in
violation of NRS 200.481.2e, COUNT 11 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 12 - ASSAULT WITH A
DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 13 —
ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS
200.471, COUNT 14 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in
violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 15 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 16 - ASSAULT WITH A
DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, and COUNT 17 —
BURGLARY (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 205.060; and the matter having
been tried before a jury and the Defendant having been found guilty of the crimes of
COUNT 9 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in
violation of NRS 200.4810; COUNT 10 — BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY
WEAPON RESULTING IN SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony) in
violation of NRS 200.481.2e, COUNT 11 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 12 — ASSAULT WITH A

P S Forms\WOC-Jury 1 Ct/12/30/2013
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DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 13 —
ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS
200.471, COUNT 14 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in
violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 15 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, COUNT 16 — ASSAULT WITH A
DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 200.471, and COUNT 17 —
BURGLARY (Category B Felony) in violation of NRS 205.060; thereafter, on the 18TH
day of December, 2013, the Defendant was present in court for sentencing with his
counsel, Mitcheli Posin, Esq., and good cause appearing,

THE DEFENDANT IS HEREBY ADJUDGED guilty of said offense(s) and, in
addition to the $25.00 Administrative Assessment Fee, $150.00 DNA Analysis Fee
including testing to determine genetic markers, $12,639.93 Restitution payable to
Anneesah Franklin, $3,263.73 Restitution payable to Anyla Hoye, and $10,369.04
Restitution payable to Antioch Church; the Defendant is SENTENCED to the Nevada
Department of Corrections (NDC} as follows: AS TO COUNT 9 — Sentenced under the
SMALL HABITUAL STATUTE to a MAXIMUM of TWO HUNDRED - FIFTEEN (215)
MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTY (60) MONTHS; AS TO COUNT
10 - Sentenced under the SMALL HABITUAL STATUTE toa MAXIMUM of TWO
HUNDRED - FIFTEEN (215) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTY {60)
MONTH, to run CONSECUTIVE to Count 9; AS TO COUNT 11 - TO A MAXIMUM of
SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 10; AS TO COUNT 12 - TO A MAXIMUM
of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16}
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 11; AS TO COUNT 13 - TO A MAXIMUM

3 S4Forms\JOC-Jury 1 Ci/12/30/2013
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of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 12; AS TO COUNT 14 - TO A MAXIMUM
of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 13; AS TO COUNT 15 - TO A MAXIMUM
of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 14; AS TO COUNT 16 - TO A MAXIMUM
of SEVENTY-TWO (72) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of SIXTEEN (16)
MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 15; and AS TO COUNT 17 -TO A
MAXIMUM of NINETY - SIX (96) MONTHS with a MINIMUM Parole Eligibility of
TWENTY-TWO (22) MONTHS, to run CONCURRENT with Count 16; with SEVEN
HUNDRED THIRTY-ONE (731) DAYS credit for time served. (COUNTS 1 THROUGH

8 were DISMISSED WITH PREJUDICE, on September 25, 2013.)

DATED this 504 day of December, 2013.

/ /’if/ [l

CAROLYM ELLSWORTH
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

4 SAForms\JOC-Jury 1 Ct/12/30/2013

Appellant's Appendix 0324



Electronically Filed

« s I q“/ | 01/22/2014 01:20:41 PM
_ R .
Mcuﬂow% H. c\lww'\ A,

N R I T el ety
AOR“M1+€hi:i)—Po§—r\ ‘ iSIRIC LR | ! URT
e ok b Klead, CLark Cound?, NevaDa
) Plat.ﬁ"h"ﬁf e 2786489
P ’l\ C&SE NO. %"

N \\ouﬁ( Mjﬂ\_k ,’*{r DePTne._& AL

:H:ON b De fendant “ DocKEINO.

f

9 \.

I (o . _ |

il WHNQ’\TCQJSE: “L L \‘\M a\LMﬁﬁﬂn &g RQC ﬂggdg "6\“(" 6n.
43 ok N\b\mm ﬁ v\ N@Q é\:m@k&\ﬁ_ Due Fo Toe-nbecfive,

i ASSStunce, 0% Counsel ilrw Confiel 20 Taudere g

wam - Now. \N \our{‘JrJuokwm Al ?\"096 o mo\/e/ 4[1:5
e %ﬂm\»\@ Cosck, 1o Revansider” the Dotendants Motion
8 Yor o Newl hrwaro!vé o Ty kil_@_d-wq,_Assrfﬁnce, 0+ Counse |,
s /\)p@mw%-ma\\ Miscondict and_Cenlict of Tatecest, /‘L 3‘0
_» oe Defendant, hg_w_\bj nad_| CS@Q ctfully, requat dhat
) %\quv% Fbssmﬂtﬁ Mo Midehe 90&& {SQ \mié@.
| ‘D@?\{F\Jx&ﬂjﬁ Cf}dm";;’\ (C-«;-—_MM (]n(l 0 Ff()l ﬂ‘&' H\-"/ “)&&,g;/) c{ayrl/‘l‘
- m&e(mn&aﬂ Counsa. S o L

S S

A T&/\% MO"MM 3 %_3.@(& Qﬂ(}\ Hdlé(@ _on GH ‘{\51- ’}"J@h"jw )
A Q'@O{C&Jﬂ (A,Wj\_d_()wmeﬂj(ﬁ of %\\Qi\f@@_%&_&&&f&\,&_* _
w cEveD
| T TXNIAN 22 20

o - CLERKOF THE COURT Appellant's Appendix 0325

-LA




2__G “lﬂdﬂaﬁ MemMoiandim o fornks and Avthardies | and

rxffu Ofal Amu«amea\\‘ m”awed \7\4 Has 4?@0%@11‘039{@ @w{r

—q ’Dc,-kgd;@a,s 12 cl %a%l\_lo\[embu 2a|3,

5

j Wilbur} 1K cen SR

8 e
_____ 9 - SN ]
e Notice. e+ Motion o

___ 4,2 .TQ: N..L /\)mf_%]'ag Q"\;l IW&%(@S_J}_‘

(2

) /@&@-‘\3& ea(/{ﬂ Q‘T \/(Jd ’TG\\[Q N(\ih(& ‘%\L\&' 'A—@f\@- ‘WfﬁWM g
Moj;mn_\& A me_\o_e;@me. Vi sknick Court Deft. 5 M

2014

b 12_ ____-da ¢ﬂ: Februaryiﬁ_‘g’_ a.{L 19—92._._&'}44 f@f h&{“%
] 7_Qmﬁdﬁﬁ-&_oL%ﬂiMML 2013, | .

- I8

19 | L | _MV\\'!\\DM:‘;HI CK;\’M:S&

vy

o (CorBode of Sendice-

Ad -

| \&;\ &Uf_{.ﬂ’\\c\u&mn _J\” ) CQFJ(?M 'NNA{' 1 Pace,(/[
N \r\-\’O %&, mml a ) W‘#’l\\"\ ‘}0\1 @(’;COF’\S AQ[Qi]O“\ @‘%’L "0 .
i Yhe “\ﬂﬂ\om\m\ @9(50\(\ \M@Lbe \owls _ -
16 ’Do\i[z&._ A )aaL% _&)\(QM\'&K‘-— .‘wi'&,

IS B | o o
| B | Appellant s Appendlx 0326




2
3 Clo
|

et of-Coucks

206 |enhs Pue.,

3
¢ Loseugs | Novada_Gaiol
1

E ] .,":/’.- ‘_ .UJJ\..J_:,/'.,
g‘ Wilbuet Hidiman Jr,

T | _,Mvomm&um ot ?()MJG’ of Avﬂ/mu‘iﬁes

(1 ' Sﬁﬁ’&n’w/\ﬂ of HAe COL;&/_

i3

iy Ol’l ﬂaﬂ\JMUx _,le) Z J(L_to.;j&é(maﬂmml’ hqu lms ?L@Lm-ﬁ

lf_ Wy, {’,bm_a/ M‘ H/W/COVIOU{/M ot 1 L\L/_PL@ mj/ﬁglﬂ%
Awrdmw Are Detendant wus Pound VP o District

1 Courk A "sof Awo\\awva

18 O “Januacy 11 o\ o Ue/rmdm{' was ar‘rmynea[

_ 20 QM\W/ and vp\e. W f\@\k*r‘kb O\ Sp{u\ﬂ 'l'rnq\ A‘hﬂm

19\ \owee=\ee) ] lsjw ok Gt The Defendant plead m‘e‘

T X

3(\;\@, wWous. Set for n’\avc\«B‘zms and_0 ..&\mo cu Lall Aﬁe -
gy %&%of_%e\oma\_ra N _20_\L_ L

AY QN %WN‘\L 23 201, @ Yd—nhb«l J@or U\IﬁJr OLHﬂb{,&L_S

2§ Co(\ NS WS 5}\5\@,& ov\,*t\/\a, ’D%mdmiﬁ boholg. Dve

b

26 l—e WN?\¥ C}\-‘\"Q\\DQ&S QQQ\NS \oc\i\U\ '\'\\U& Mae,

20, _.

Appellant s Appendlx 0327




> CDQ"‘QQN\;‘(M;\_‘Q() 5\’v‘w\\ dede s Cesed,

3

O N A‘Qn\ Q iZO\’Z. \ H«L ’Dfeqce,ﬂclm nb{-‘é \[)s_{:'ii’ of —Ha beas

\.i
5 (bcmx Wos O\mmlmk\\f\ Pact,

b

! O:f\ A—Wa\ 1, ZD\B “H’UL PUID\‘L j@-ﬁem{ers (}i”j’l(@ WA S

%’___Q,\ONQJ\ ‘!ko N‘i‘r\,\c\mm and e, Mﬁ'o e} 7) 3 SIn. ( Mr,_POSm \ a S

q Cov\x-\ TW\UA ) C@)ftﬁe (M%\le{\ \r\e, Was. ?Qﬂw Mam%j @m«\&t (&w Me ne felw;)

(- —

i OnPugusk 013, 0 natice of Habrtal \,a,mma\ahﬂ

12 \AnS Jlf"@. \o% Hu, OK‘OSQDUJrof

13 )

I Of\ AUG\U&LY ’lb ?,Q)\'b -H?\Q/‘De'(leﬂdw 1{’5 {szp_ |Am CCW

5 hﬂwm«(\_ms C@ f\uclruL %o%\ X\ \ (@ﬁ%ﬁu] L0y /"Ltcf
e A v\&z) annNodnee M%( AQ fgif o L

1

18 On S@ lﬂ\"; +MD®RMmﬁ€ *‘\T“M\ b@gﬁ'&ﬂ}_.________
L On SQl[)‘\'@YY\hILr q 21)\3 '\'L\L-_IUFW [c%w{«\u\@ Vordedd o

2.0 m @\ m\—u OV\_J@Q&‘(@\ C‘(\Mgg,_@nd_}:\w\& O\C\_X_Ooda{’S

23 | _ | o o

24 T‘r@ _Dﬂﬂcﬁndmjr \G’M \Q/Vlleﬁ( J’IGTS Qﬁ)’n’:ﬁj{:wﬁanqﬂﬁg____
Ay —_(\‘S{At;b _0\__-_@0\\(‘ Al—rm\_J)\bq,_-Lo \Y\Q:"Jﬁ(f('i\mz ASS.1S {-“\Vl(ﬁ_ H

26 Cevn;%\ ,_?@mrm\_MUCOnddo‘(' and _erfineots Juc %

27 pskruchens, L S
. Appellant's Appendlx 0328




) \
- 1L, Mﬁ\ QOS\A d;\é\_ M‘i EW\W, Ur\x:, 'De’bgenc](m% Coméofez['e

{4

Digcavery, , bk b l\_a)mu&i_jl:\ﬁ@\_hb\//‘ﬁlw* ek
%d‘%:ﬂ\m {‘\&, )X g(:f'\w’\-ﬁl@-,&\’_\ En{:o\rmecl Cen 5601‘[" -

Co. 06 hele_an M\/e,sﬁﬁoﬁow

4

Z.

3

1 _ 3

s 3, My Q&W% Y
Jp

,

VWre, MONQ.! %)L{(/_\,ai-

 Dul ok ikenvian the Wipnesse ot e “Defendant

or MM&L@&.JW«K@M—Q@MM he noed

& ol
q Jo\ledy It loodtand who hed Yo Jaskidy o€ i Deiadant.
o S M, Vosia Asd ok e Debendant befor J-Ma( }4—0 | _
I Q‘iiSwSS %‘L\ﬂ, ‘@‘@\\GNMQ \&m@@»(\!&;e\w\‘ 5’%’%‘@7‘*5@6: |

2. ), @a\w\.\\% (%Qﬁume&)% ngaml \09\\ in\le,s-\{%ﬁm,

(5 (bl_ﬂm&ﬁ@t Cuestions

iy . oldSne o Aot ga_CHena Glaten ﬁ«”"mj\;‘

LS @> C{@% AN AN LGt ?\& V\L@m‘_ﬂ“ _\?(‘053}.@6\'\\1 J @fa Secution
e \Wnerses ‘

17 i@\ (\t& - Q}’Zami-f\«.@.&W\ \ans ‘Q‘w all d{e-@en $2, wWitnesses

\ ?mSQCM'\'\-‘o\f\'S W dness {me,

8 () Vocie Stakaments -0

9 Vosia X o0t e, ?we\‘! . AT Aopnson \3‘( ey,

(6\, OU\'\‘\V\Q_ 0¥ é\ra@r e dos{nq (}iﬂ%ﬁ’\m{% i

-

2/ | &‘\,\\ NQ\(@(‘ AP,\IQ\QQAIS\ Q {)\o\f\ C\i\{i\cx\} \nle.

wiould Condeec

22 O\-\) tng {1‘3 o\

23 C\l_&@'%ﬁ(ki ")(.\lSSggir V\“/\IL'\%QF \\_jv wodld, \_og, E@#{@{ _ﬁ—@ 1 @%
| g ,OLM&{V\SM (}@\u on The g-lrw\—@,

25 Seos\dfe -\;u ek

58 —tey a.
Lo Consirkohona ou pheN G

%

) y W \
2¢ (\?_mjl‘r%_gm_@kmm% b&%@m\ 0__feadun, 2 A\w\f)r.\

Appellant's Appendix 0329




f

2 (}\5. COnSe‘o?em&‘ *r;i L‘ng G f@!‘@#’ﬂ'ﬂ\/ ﬁ‘lo{‘l‘af’l 11'0 f ‘ﬁée

-y
2

(
Yo Vrosewtions "y pentpistness”, |

(A, Never tiled anw Mohims gn Jhe Aeiendoats bolialé

Y

!
s (0, Nevep Goglitan eypert to festify un the slfendasts
g,

b@&w\@ ‘

7 (5_“\\ D_L@\!Qﬁ(‘ %\@ &_mﬂn_—\ﬁ__&m %’le,( f%a( e ;QO_“U_V_\/JE&SJ_J-"‘_/M' oS,

. W, )Vf\\‘?«ﬁgﬁg_‘@ﬁi;.v\f ol Highotis —

) -
9 q'“ﬂg_g_ 8_4)(';'51[@@, L SubS fonce  and manner L ¢y ecyfion_ae. ___
N 1> Xy J_\_—;Ei_ﬂ_rf_\_@d;, _Qj‘l_-@_q%/‘_f_)_fﬁ mises | Olﬁmemm.u ,lindlar cmc/fngs o
7l GmJ ﬁ\h‘ﬁ‘m’\g@mﬂz&ﬁ(s__‘ {ME\Q,“LU V'QU‘%&( or JM'.;" g“]Hw N a,,\,gﬁ\e‘f’{fwr |
2 Somjoed et pataten Lie slede s agets 24
)3 0”\{%@'«%@3‘{53 mﬂk{i L] ':;:";fir-é?i?i, or 4 *'*;,;-?z;rvcfi“ a-gm/s
X il "'“'.G'-t‘%mgﬁ (o feicseatatives, tehtran Jhe sbde fhas _
(5 | 6\'% reedh 3%\-‘? t?wﬁ- fM“ (?'eﬁ(r ~!0 (\‘f)\i‘_&%} eﬁtjf'érﬁ‘b" LXF@%{ ‘R .
A _ _Olm?\ioso\ __i_YL_Cﬁ(ﬂ_if\_-'g_\OM&T_&qt_\;}_m_ﬁJ‘ 1\\) H&& W[l(lﬂ’tﬂg
o (gl L Vaikd Shdes | 405 1.5.150, 9
e SE IR AL e Din e
19 2, 0{;{&1 cers Notes Lﬂ%cwijm_. (nse — -
20 @;nu/ \eid wli Wen oo QJHM dise prerkrielized
_ 2l _._EL%‘:SEMW ) _{MM@%S&J{,% (Hl‘;ii__‘-‘? 5 ._m o
22 & iS(%Q‘mC\U%.,@_/%\Ao% _Qonskm_g%\\;ds( _(Jo_SSQSSec‘\)
23 _ﬁ__ \& e f:a_@_ﬂ_;ti_e;COW\\"ﬂ’\\)WQxﬂM kiﬁui@&._
24 Q\\ﬂﬂi&i\ﬁ_ _\_o_cgs_)_(,_&‘b S ;Cm" +o ot and au Bi | _
__________ iy @‘HW’ (200 oS ,“03‘5_ I_M}ia_’)_,_xiﬂﬁs,(ﬂ‘_.(u MS H,Eg _._%\'(_{@ﬂ‘.t,_ R
2¢ _. B
_ __2._.7___

App*éll_arit-'s Appendix 0330



) M\ ?0\/\0*05 /}Dmémms/\/ufeos

p\d 17%‘(0? '}m\@n f\w’?qamfmq JﬁLi_éaSe Gned f‘/}@"’f/’m(

W

aimluﬂ (And WM/ B’m\f&ﬂ aMé, \{!6{@05 m 1%( S%Gfes

()6*06\‘ o Conﬁ{'r‘ud‘!% [ZOS%SQ:M

Ql l{!l‘gggmi_gﬁmm{“ .

A_Cq@%;o:&_‘f WW@@@%&&L@M@ %.g_@@ o+ A

Q) 3{.‘3_

P~ N = S D v N

__bl?.q*)\égbﬁ‘k ?ﬁ\c%@ i (*H"M / [ X0 QMJWQ#?'GBH /Tﬁaf’ﬁwﬂ zl.S !
0. /rw osdless. @P&L&x PeSURS. CM?L M(%S_r@_jaaa(, r.Ljo a_f?{_ .

il “'QX Q%_Jj‘ ILMLQ M\n@q_s (H_ Q\ﬁt:)‘? ﬂﬁﬁ"/n@ fﬁjmbéﬂlﬂ

y) ‘}(ms Cam {(}La OCUL/LCEE‘[’LJ_L’b\m(ed’ at 7{_ ——_
13 QJ,\/po,r*('S wagg_lm eck Fii ‘f S‘“*’*’@U“a (4 4’&'5 (\aSz,
| 7 K\Dc\ S Ao US%QJMU Am m'mu {5);

g &V\% Clocy MJB_W_IHQ\ACJLNM‘B_ recards and 1 lufes

L Arom am?/_hgs% fol) nledical facilik ')_C@Uﬂ&@_ﬁ_faﬁ__

17 | \-m(,d&:i&g OLWJ ambdlancds> ‘HUC/' g %a:{*&__‘ig I L
8 s fclal or Congiruetivt \sse S5 R
19 | o
20 S/ 5 O‘F ficees MisConduct LQ 1S VM_@%(_A@E»(M@)E _
o Duroyant Ao Milkey, Ry 8012 WLAT4\ 277
C2n WM AnzD), 200 g order 5. Fw\/fﬂe Wwfn\/@ o
3 055¢hance of Counsel | e dedfence Counsel Shold
24 \QCN&S*‘ bb“/\ @X(CU {}JIL&M %La_lo /Wﬂdmpif_ﬁw#ﬁq (
2 Haskis releant eikher o gultar Punithineat-do inchde :
2 0N @fﬂ&@%@dn&ﬂu%@dmw_ﬁ ainst gfLicels.,
27 _._____myzo\o‘l\mw‘l"ﬁ’la{‘&i‘zdﬂ ‘Q’\P@ﬂ/\_@ﬁg—uwm ﬂffanep ‘ﬂ:ﬂi@:m_

Appellant s Appendix 0331




L 00 elsephere 1nduding “all 00CordS ofs and. Interna|

J 0
3 M«ms \(\\f%*\m;‘mms 50 mwf §%h 1) Q@aqum‘{‘

4 ) w\%r tol 0;}— 4 ﬁjﬁﬁ& %WJJ%LMM

ol (Ans 0N 46%‘@\4\\?\{\ <

v { \
£L ) U
I Aw& M/)h @ & Bﬂ@{?ﬂsn % @bjm.n (L:p 7{‘5@(( =z {’[L@( _

7O

M_SQQ/'HUIX MUQ+ )Orm/ de. J/ dé'&_l&@ i wi(;/ f’:«wf

1 alL_){QAPM_uK e,\(\o(@mc m_\b actval_ or Lenstruchive

o _(\)0 5325510, {\_(30 et Yo o Due Pmu_g gﬁ_(j /au s Vhe.

. [ lm_@n& u AWLe/nJiMn,{-( OL ‘%{/ UwﬁM—Lw{’Q of

ngﬁ@i@{'uﬂm E)‘(\cw& /Y, Mamlo*ﬂd RYENTF SF_KSL 851__4_{4_ ___

13 \0\\«\ /\Clb’S\ v\\ﬂeﬂ. WL \’\z? ,"’ULUJE] S“\ Ug U(& ﬁ g (/J

" \335 (\O\QSS/p/Mwmm QJMH Mo, Dot ObVIOUS\w/ DmuM

s \fw@cdr 2 OtSS«s#an%m_@uﬂsﬂK dve in Lefre gurt n‘u Hhe
o Aok Yk o wos u{)mk wikh, oz, Defendluat For_not

I'1 \’YN\’“S_MDM_MD%K pm&L'nW\ Hir, ‘Ooim Was pm_d_onk! _ﬁ__._..._

LL_j(/\b*/\d\{\ QOS‘V\ \E%\):ie( 4\7’ gﬁ«ev\d CH'\U{/ /’40"1.2(/{ )n\/&s-(r a‘bnq G

_IO_SQGU%_O\ ?'@5\ éﬁ—ﬁyﬂwmﬁt\i\— no‘u\m Lw{o, \H/LK 1S *FL\"» feaSon. . .

Zo @r@,@M\fN A &*&_&J is__Cp@M A C@n-f':d— |oe u\feelq

_ 2 MAIL j‘l‘i‘mﬂm\}: and M\C, P&Sm — PGSH’]_ "\ﬁd 0/“"({@0[
2 \ H’e,g -TtUb Sucha Olmanc menf ar”an‘;“"ee, O“\' A%tﬁ%’“&
23 of Cavnsel Gimprimes 4o Cgrm\ Ve (gt TL;L ot o

2 Counsel od tessoreiie (- cedenCe. and Fhae K gt 1o Quﬂ:@els
25 und e ded \&_@ _ﬁ__JV\ou b v, M____——-} s 71 t.2d
26 571) 5%7@% (El Y H%@B __M&A\ ‘*ﬁ\_\&\___%&/ _Defenoet:m{'f

I S%&QW C&i mr Q@‘Sjg\‘__a_’\.d ‘[l() QGF /uWn ‘(‘ém@s’il' W

 Appellant's Appendix 0332




[

2 %dm%— Needd 10 Speale i fHa ﬂnqu gitee  Fhe -

3__Meahim ﬂrl(m#?/lj, c{f(j[_/z_u& ﬂab\("@o ‘/O \/‘gl'l/‘" tle %f’w v@"@ f{/v

y N\\m IUWG QMH”\ \ Q\ﬁﬁ" t\b j}[‘f‘gbgd@ﬂf‘ @(@J M,
%Sm% Cend him F&ug @chew Eered

A mwux f‘H'\Q«f‘ dm@umm ‘Muz, (fe%m//ﬁhf‘ hwf

. ﬁ[ﬂ 10, alSe, The UQqﬁ@nJ@rw{ m’(pc/ Mlr QQSM
8 % Ul an \K\JL (4 e,an\(e/ f‘\;gyﬁ‘ﬂ'm‘&@@ b1 Coun sef MZ@{‘W?

g M? Posin Tmmu&ﬂkjmw&g button Ly fewve
&rwj\ d‘é\r’%ci " \/J do It jmmf?tgw ! o '

U § S

2. Aﬂ\d Sinee %&.‘D@—emdm{‘ N m#' @\ Law/ er /’L@
15 Cama%- Q(M Wit~ o (on i{'d _43_&_@ Ldlyh@i iW‘ h

9&3\\0 %\M% Protid g, -
is h\‘@\b& b e VQ\J\QS@#\%"Q@( \’J‘L C‘Ni’\&@\ 130 ’#’(Ma’ﬁ(é’f'ﬂﬂ )
BT ‘\m‘x Comoneat g4 $hs Cog m&w\i i]’m%@@ 5{274;4@1/(
| 11 L@ijtu $ 1 Cpy ft’\m@ Caﬁxeﬁ' me,NQCQSSp -—1@5 n@r |
;o_-_h}mm@ ) T\N&N‘ /\)Nsen% 1S Q«SS@-WWA e,ccwm 'H«@Efr
X (},\’\Q_J({A& AN, ‘Hfu“ouik \/\J‘mo(\ "Hae_ OWY‘ fl‘J!/lx‘S o
oo egson_on Frial are” Secured “_,lf S. Ve [ranic L[GB US
o bed g oy & ok 2oy, "“mus Ho ow(\fmqml |
?mss by which M SiyHe Arendment pequies
23 A%{M&J((,\a, O\CQU%JW\\!@ OOUY\&@ acl\'mj inde e (
. OF ()«\*\,Otc;\\iocw{“c Anders V. CQ\\«COW\\Q,, 31 US 75‘6
2 143 €1S,CF ‘s%(%‘n ]

w6 199 0.s, AR9D.L. 3D, ’s%z 62{ +ZA b, zi%
22 697) it was Saded %\ML "_tn Some._Cases o

Appellant's Appendlx 0333




‘. ‘(“‘\L Q_Qf-rmmm\c& O-@ Gmniaf May b@. Qo nﬁn/@eua?{’&

d
2 %‘(‘ In Q—&&d‘ No a55istqace 615: Counsel s ﬂfmdw/
3

(@mmm’s C@inj ).
Y
C A - \ ( . : -_—
s & MU NS Consdihuddes ls. o Tpia] Reprecoutibion
G ?3& ow 15 @ it%@ @M* Mf\ !’(bjm Q g émd’ Omm ga @t ﬁ@g
7

lB %\\Mq“m IA{%O\UQjO LC()L pQrF into 6\/| ema- —
5 2;5 “‘rw\om% gbSeck 1o Hm, S‘é«&*—tx s ne 9us ’JILFU;

5 » l(\S&f‘dole\ o J
i0 33 %P \{d +o M%M’?““ ‘kaendan% n ‘(0)(16#/0»1
W), Faled do have any "'Du‘mdw /'Smo(u/ MmLemlS

-
—

).2 CM{JW/ Q‘mr ol . M@\l%\( ro! \eMu}\ PEQ@SQLU'HUV\ ‘g‘”

(3 N, ds \u& b Sub foeny, amé/_ wWinesy of documents
i ¢ (o\ ‘\w\ui + ﬂm\i\@, QA Y rJALA‘ 42 Covnder ghﬂ'—es

(s QM—U‘{‘ | .
TR )Y "@KQMLP&S&& fo M Juty ar Mfioachie
N i . -Dge%i;\_ia,_o-f-\l)am\s\r\w Cu?am}v‘ { \/&'UH""'“[ N\Wlm}w} i

e — ——— e —

1B S{\ ‘%& ﬂtx Jfb P(\eﬁm{‘ 0 ( EXCO/ﬂmjrm? .@\/\AMCQ
(7 Cﬁ %:a led o Drbxlgeﬂ_ ?(\Q%QL’B__‘"L\@X_ Never ¢ 7o did

20 MQO(\%M'@(& mc,l 4L5L de.ﬁ-gnolan{' 4/(‘.4 Pi‘tfﬁm’um o

2 03 WCA\ W o[“ijemu% CroSs-examing. Q%le Witnesses
22 WD Ai\eddn Share gng of g ConversationS Condents

23 O%_‘Ku; manw SIAQ_&LLW\J CLIQ_WI_\&P Qam'@i’én%& e

2y m}{—#‘a éz&f fs_have qi@ ConveRSatign_ fucsrd ¥ 7% N

25 preserve tha tocoed foe Gllckeral roged.
L 2e

Appellant's Appendix 0334




D, fuled o Visken dy Hoe, Defendant i dnul

lf\L\Q;n M)&J-Dd-emdanjr Mw LQ“ o @ &\./{”’)US (/\/a) /‘1%{“

E el ho bwuly Say 5 shetep,

12, failed rentivy Hae ey Ha e s peceifed
| '\ﬁmr\ ‘\’ﬁn{/—DJarpe/nGtAﬂ“\'S )«\Swnnc.e, (Om E)ZH’?‘/{’

gy deshi on Mol Dedand ek bl

19 Siteh o o\ Vg padet Hhe DA falded
‘(\\W\_CH gmo&ﬁ Jr’\,ms_'_._-“’\ foe \r\\?\f\)

y
S

o “’bu N‘QLQT @L te/q (’UW/ ot Hao \’\J?ﬂcSSQ/S ’//lxc\tp\/am[ed
7

3,

q

[0 “a\ %&\&L{m \‘W/\*\b{\ L\JL\_U\ C@J‘lam Widnerses Gm—
v m H'e_é\ por \\H‘\h

2 ATy, failed 4 _ﬁmgg&t (e Corypts f)\“i ,ano(_oﬂ(ﬂ;d@awﬂ@@&
/3 SLWJMM&AWMM m,, M@u_dg_m‘q’ Lﬁ\ M\L&yﬁf__

W \ﬂ!@MQ/\\LQkL

49

e M Q(SSN\5 (onshs ‘lv'h‘bm \l{ O[btﬁ et G\ Qﬂ(\q,jem{'ahan bqu_

/3 ‘\'Qo\ u"wl/ "6

__and dwm s _m(‘(ﬁ,@med [ He \94@“‘15*”# hi§. hﬁ%"‘

6 SG\Jri

st —_\U_uc%m 45 an_gdvecate ot e Defon dink o

L(,( Yoo Constitytion , Cowasel

2 OWGLUUm o ftiund o8 e Couck" IJMS_..\L ’Sames

23 ﬂ/_\qxaﬁ(\mrsqrt u OF@LQSS Sama a\r\\q\, \4? C@Um%, %ﬁd‘@/%

o 29 (M'S 'I'D Stllaaﬁd" &’L\L 0(‘05—‘2@\)\'\0\!\3 Co\SQ{‘b W(W\s S&U

28 M\/WSCW‘M %eS‘H\t}, ‘l"ruu\ | e L\AS l;ee,n 7 c‘fwm( @-El

2 qvx%,/dfnenc/merﬂ' fljh‘{"s \M&J/’ mykes ‘;”A_,@, A»OIU/QI‘SON‘

Appellant's Appen 0335




2

S

Peoess el Qmsumwcmiﬂd Jn gl g,ble.. ﬁm e, Héb

U.s, byy, Loy .0k ot 20y,

oog‘f*vy.-c

Appellant s Appendlx 0336



A._;;{)gf7{¢f¥id Q. A 65, S*om@z_ 0‘? Cu_u nse ! .

2.
3 L. To Gc\%‘s% Conshiduifinal e phocess a _
!  debendant as @ Sigkh Amendimen Rignt 4o
) effetiie assislance, of Camsel, " Dediciant" assistance
6 @&L_(bmngﬁ_ai_‘&wié&l%‘; BMJW‘P alls holow an _
2 O\O‘jmmw_éfi:am&m\pm‘; veasstableness, Danlsen Y Sate,
’ 10%_Ned, 11115, 525 P24 593 (1a42). " The Profec
q Neasuce. OfF  Attorned, Verformante, Perlaing Sierdly,
(s mmgmﬂg__w_u&m_pmqmi ]i"f‘) Dro-lessiunal _DN6ms,
L Ay Nc:&f\ﬂ\n/& \f’,\A'\asb\mq\m ) ux’éb LS. CAJ(‘ 6§ ilOL\‘ S\.C'h____
(2 Qo5 ML Dosing cfg{s ond_CnlisSiens tndevbtubly
1% CandSem ,H/w\fi' MU P@M&Qﬂ?&&gt\\&j\‘i@q s ’
Y Cmmﬁk@mdﬁlw inedfective,, E)Qlaw IS _& d@ o @M-F
Vs 0L MU, &\Sl‘&l,}g acks and Tmiss)ens.
L
7 B Me Yesias acks and Gaission _
g b Meotin fuiled o \cha\@ his Glient with essential
1§ Pee—Ytial Counsel and adiise  Mp, 123l Gle (aacenn
20 INAS \(\Qm ﬂ'\&ﬂﬁq!\ nlon eV -H.\a ']@la\—@uda L_ﬁj G@:j lfj paf/r H 1M
U | Nevex Was Hoene 6«\%%&(‘%&@ ooyt 21*551{ -im%ﬁ%",
22 ?053‘\\0\@:19&%@\3@8; oL gnything J'o do W He Deleaplantt
75 (6de. The. Sixdn Amiens] m‘wé"-i?:! Plgid Jo &8k v 2580Sa e
24 % Cf@mum\ ‘m“\\@ms QT «ﬁﬂﬂ_ E’%m‘%‘%k 5{4«4&5'\ of C.gm‘min«f

" Joow
25 ?FQCQQ«Q\\T\% l,lr\\?—ﬁs C@m\{)‘ﬁ.{vw\‘\‘{w W&i\s@L\ 4 M&\( Mo&(’.@_)
o 9% £od Lyl Gy,
21

Appellant's Appendix 0337




Ac knowleDGemenT Ve

-

v STaTe oF NEvVADA

. 5¢.
1 CounlY oF ClARK

§ 8]

=L

5 0ateD_THs. Lf.ﬂ._.,__.,_ﬂ_ala_g__o_{)__Dcc.em ber  20/3 .
e T, \dilbuet Wiekwan Jo. do .
b __So-le.m.kl.lxt_*&WeaJ‘,_uucf&r - PeMaJ 1L|a;_ _Ifi_pe r J ] v:_y,,,:chr{' |

_ 18 __°‘}.‘ﬂ.€-__a\‘box(e,w o \-wu Reugﬂﬁg\iﬁﬁwis accurat e, _
o cocrect awd teue to the best of my Kuowledge.

20 NRSLTL 0L onel MRS _208. bS]

21 U I S

B T Ke.bpecfg.-//‘y Subm, #Cc/ .
WL%M/ZL Mw%

- & . e
1Y ; _
a5 B | o .

Appellant's Appendix 0338



T/

Wilbuet Hic £man \m,kgom:.w, - _ _ ¢
1220 = (a8IND Center Blid. N o ﬁ.\w%ﬂ%m
gé@x@@b Z( WQ O“ L o\ L | E s 02 10 $ 001.32%

K 0003157314 c
Z MAILED FROM ZIP CODE 8910%

Appellant's Appendix

12%. 13632”. Eu m&d&z ﬂl 0201}
om \.@ém e o%% _
<O®Pm 7:\%

Cﬂmﬁ oﬂ .I@ ?E_i

%cwf

:EE‘ :: ;:: s:% é ? il



Pt

oo ~] (o) wh 4~ (Y] ) — <o O oo ~J N wh uN UJ.[\) — ()

O 00 N0 N U B oW

ORDR

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

MARC DI GIACOMO

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #0069535

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV
(702) 671-2500

89155-2212

Attorney for Plaintiff

Ele‘ctronically Filed

02/24/2014 07:47:03 AM

%*W

CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

-VS-

Plaintiff,

WILBURT HICKMAN, aka,
William Hicks,

#0905481

Defendant.

CASE NO: C-12-278699-1
DEPT NO: -V

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S NOTICE OF MOTION AND MOTION FOR
RECONSIDERATION OF MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL

DATE OF HEARING: February 12,2014
TIME OF HEARING: 9:00 A.M.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the

12th day of February, 2014, the Defendant not being present, in proper person, the Plaintiff
being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through MARC
DI GIACOMO,- Chief Deputy District Attorney, and without argument, based on the

pleadings and good cause appearing therefor,

/1]
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IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's Notice of Motion and Motion for
Reconsideration of Motion for New Trial, shall be, and it is DENIED. This type of motion

must be filed by way of a post-conviction relief writ of .hébeas corpus.

DATED this _&2/s/ day of February, 2014,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

Bt
RC DI GIACOMO

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #006955

MD/erg/L-1

DISTRICA JUDGE
s
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cannot find him guilty of crimes that are not charged here. You're looking at the
crimes that are charged, and of those crimes, | think you will find that he is not
guilty. Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Hamner.
MR. HAMNER: Thank you.
STATE REBUTTAL ARGUMENT
BY MR. HAMNER:

| made some notes of what | heard Opposing Counsel said. | want
to touch on some of those and then touch on a couple of things that | want to bring
up.

Now, the Defense concedes that we’re pretty much in agreement,
it's him. He's the one who did it. There’s no dispute as to what he did. So let’s
just check all that stuff off because that's the truth. All the -- everything the
witnesses said is on point. The question becomes, what's his intent?

He said, what we need to do is look into that man’'s mind on that day
to figure what he was thinking. From the very beginning of this trial, during voir
dire, we talked about, hey, might it be important to look at the before, the during
and the after? And | think some people said, you know, it is, because it gives you,
just what he said, a window into that man’s mind.

So let’s think about what he did, think about what he said. Now,
what they basically said was, the only thing that was going through his mind, the
very clever and unique reason why he drove halfway into a church was because he
wanted to see his daughter? That's their theory, but is that supported by the
evidence. Well, let's look at all the circumstances.

What did he say after he’s halfway through a church where he flew

_08-
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the doors off the hinges? Did he say, where's Samira? Did he say, I'd like to see
my daughter now? Can | see her now? I'm so sorry, but | just want to see my
daughter? |s that what this man said? No. He said, I'm going to kill all you
motherfuckers. You don’t know who you're messing with.

Mr. Craig Hutton said, He was threatening to kill everyone.
Washington Thompson, who never even seen this guy, he looks at him dead in the
eye and he goes, You are next. That's funny, | don’t think Mr. Thompson looks like
his daughter. You saw him. Is that someone that you could get confused with his
daughter? Probably not. A window into his mind.

He drove through the church to see his daughter, is that -- my
favorite instruction of all the instructions is the common sense instruction. It's in
there. | don't know the exact one is, but the law basically says, when you're
selected as a juror, you don't get to leave your common sense at the door. You've
got to bring it in.

So when you listen to all of the evidence and you heard all of his
statements, the thing you should be asking yourself is, does that make sense?
Was this a man who was expressing his desire to see his daughter after he plowed
halfway through this church? The answer’s no, absolutely not. Beyond a
reasonable doubt, the answer is no.

It's never about Samira at that point. It was at the beginning, but
not at the end and not while he was getting in that car for the second time. It never
was about his daughter at that point. It was about anger. It was about revenge. It
was about spite. It was about payback. That's what motivated, to try to run over
Allen Burse, run over the people at church and put that car halfway through that

church. That's what he was thinking about that second time he was in the car.
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And then there was some talk about backpedaling. It seems to be
one of the words of this trial. There's a difference between backpedaling and
giving context. Now, | appreciate Opposing Counsel wasn’t there at the previous
proceeding to ask the questions of these witnesses as to what they meant, but
when you heard them testify, all those witnesses mumble incoherent, not sure what
he said. When they were asked, they very clearly explained at trial what they
meant.

You remember what they said. | don’t need to remind that to you.
But just remember, they also said they were never asked to explain exactly what
those words meant at a prior proceeding. That's not backpedaling. That's not
being given an opportunity to explain. And that's what we did. So when you think
about their credibility and whether they're really trying to backpedal or if they're just
simply asking now to explain further on what they said before, I'll let you be the
judge of that.

Another interesting thing about this notion about intoxication, let's
be clear about something as to what the law says. Instruction 16 says, “No act
committed by a person while in a state of intoxication shall be deemed less criminal
by reason of his condition, but whenever the actual existence of any particular
intent is necessary,” that's when you can kind of think about it. So as a general
rule, it's no excuse to be drinking and then commit a criminal act.

So what this law actually says is, if you drink so much that you
cannot mentally form the idea to do something intentional, then you can'’t be found
guilty of a particular crime, whether it's burglary or assault or attempt murder.
Okay? But here’s the funny thing about the Defense’s argument.

He told us the reason why he wanted to go in there was to see his daughter, if

-30-
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that's to believe. Well, then that's funny. You must not have been that intoxicated
if you formed the specific intent to go in the church to see your daughter. It doesn't
work that way.

He's either totally zonked out of his mind, drunk out of his mind that
he doesn’'t know what he's doing or you don't get the defense of intoxication. It
doesn’t work that way. You'll see the instructions. You're either totally wasted and
you have no control or maybe when you had a few drinks -- we like to sometimes
call it liquid courage -- it fuels some of your feelings. Maybe you get the courage to
walk up to a girl and ask her out on a date at a bar. Maybe you get in a fight when
you shouldn’t have. Opposing counsel mentioned, maybe you slept with
somebody that you probably shouldn’t have. But the bottom line is, that notion, if
the alcohol helps you do something a little bit more that you wouldn’t have normally
done if you drank, that doesn't qualify. It's not forming specific intent. That's not
the way the defense works. You literally have to consume so much alcohol, that
you don’t know what you're doing.

So under either theory, our theory or theirs, he hadn’t drank enough
alcohol.

And think about the evidence that you heard. He admitted to the
officer that he had one beer. You had multiple witnesses saying, you know what, if
| didn’t smell it, his behavior didn't look like a guy who was drunk, and you saw his
actions, that they're conceding he did. Seemed like a pretty deliberate path into
that church. Is this really a guy who didn’'t know how to drive a car? | mean, he did
a bang up job getting to the church, parking the first time, walking under his own
power, walking back, driving all around, parking a second time. Never bumping

into a thing. That's amazing. In that one split second in time, oh, no, forget it,
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lights went out, | don'’t really remember what happened.

Common sense, is that really supported by the evidence? The
answer is no, absolutely not. He knew what he was doing. He was pissed, and he
lashed out.

MR. HAMNER: Excuse my language, Your Honor.
BY MR. HAMNER:

The Defense concedes the battery. That's a general intent crime.
So he’s on the hook for those. Those are just lesser crimes. We've charged
battery with a deadly weapon, battery with a deadly weapon resulting in substantial
bodily harm. Here's the actual instruction -- you'll have the instruction on the
deadly weapon. The deadly weapon instruction says, “Any instrument or device
which under the circumstances in which it is used is readily capable of causing
substantial bodily harm or death.”

Do you think driving at a person who is unarmed, on foot, alone in
the middle of the street could possibly cause substantially bodily harm or death if
you gun the gas like Mr. Burse was? Yes. Deadly weapon. Do you think driving
into a crowd of unarmed people on foot while you're gunning the gas might cause
someone to die, to succeed at hitting or hurting them really bad? Of course.
Deadly weapon. Same thing with driving through the church.

So the enhancement has been proven beyond a reasonable doubt
because there’s no dispute that he is the one who did all of those actions. He
physically did it. He’s on the hook for that enhancement. So you check off battery
with a deadly weapon. Let's get to substantial bodily harm.

That law states that anybody who has prolonged impairment for one

of their bodily members. So you have to ask yourself, did this nine-year-old girl
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have some prolonged time when she wasn't able to use her foot in the right way?
We concede, we contend, we've submitted, yes, absolutely. You put a little girl in a
soft cast or a walking boot for a period of time where she has to take pain
medication, she's having a hard time sleeping, she’'s complaining to her mother,
yeah, guess what -- she’'s not able to run and play like they used to. That's
prolonged impairment. She also had prolonged pain. And you can consider the
testimony of her mother as well as her. Don’t just take it from her mouth. Take it
from the people who watch and care for her on a daily basis. We've met that
beyond a reasonable doubt.

She’s not in a coma. She doesn’t have a limb lobbed off, but that's
not what the law says. And you'll have a chance to read that. So we've made
those enhancements. So you can check off those two crimes as they were initially
charged. He's guilty of them beyond a reasonable doubt.

There's also a comment, well, it's not really going that fast. Did you
see the pictures of that door? You can judge that for yourself. How fast do you got
to go to blow a closed door up into the air? How fast do you have to be driving?
How fast must he be going to put a Cadillac halfway into a church?

And you also had the eyewitness testimony. You can judge it for
yourself. Did all those people think it was going pretty fast? The State would
submit absolutely.

There was a lot of focus -- a little bit on the type of injury, that it was
only just a pinky toe. But we have charges like attempt murder, the law doesn't
say you have to put somebody on life support to be guilty of attempt murder. You
have to permanently cut off one of their limbs to be guilty of attempt murder. That's

not how it works. Because if that’s how it works, someone could walk into a
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crowded theatre with a gun, rattle off 150 bullets at people, and if he didn't hit a
single soul, well, guess what, you're not guilty of attempt murder. Does that make
sense? No.

You could push a nine-year-old girl off the top of a building and if
she miraculously ended up unharmed, well, apparently it's not attempt murder.
Really? Pushing a nine-year-old girl off of a very high building, that isn't something
that could cause death or substantially bodily -- absolutely. It's the act that
matters.

So the question you have to ask yourself, is the act of driving at an
unarmed man first and then speeding into a crowd of unarmed people next and
then driving half through -- halfway into a crowded church, are these acts that
could substantially cause death? The answer is beyond a reasonable doubt yes.

Now, ladies and gentlemen, there was also -- getting to this issue of
specific intent. | think a really interesting thing, if you're believed -- forget -- forget
the Samira -- “I'm coming to find Samira” theory. Let's just assume what the law
really says to get this intoxication defense, that you basically cannot form the
mental intent at the time that you're doing it. Think about that because that's what
the law says.

Here’s the problem for the Defendant based on the evidence that
was presented. Let's just assume for a second he is so intoxicated, he had no idea
what he was doing. He did not how to back that car out, cut those wheels, et
cetera. Let's just assume because the drinking was just so much for him. He
basically blacked out, right? Here’s the problem with that theory.

Take yourself to the testimony of Allen Burse. When he sat on the

stand and talked about testifying at a prior proceeding, when he said, I've been a
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cop, or whatever, but my gut was telling me not to take my eyes off this guy
because | thought something bad was going to happen. What did he tell you this
man did? He shouted out and said, you almost broke my arm, my damn arm,
that's why. How in the world --

MR. POSIN: That misstates the testimony. He stated -- that was alleged to
have been stated at the prior proceeding, not at --

MR. HAMNER: | got it --

THE COURT: Overruled.
BY MR. HAMNER:

Ladies and gentlemen, if he is so intoxicated that he was blacked
out during this senseless attack on these people, how did he remember? Why was
he trying to explain to Allen Burse, you know what, Mr. Burse, you're right, you had
a good reason to suspect something bad was going to happen. He told us. We
called his bluff at this point. He showed his tell. The hands he was showing, he
was trying to say, | don’'t remember anything, but when you shot out at a witness
and explain to them, you know what, sir, you're intuition’s right. Something bad
was going to happen because | didn't like the way you treated me. | didn't like how
you put me in that arm bar, you put me in that car.

He told us two months later that he was fully cognizant of what he
was doing, and there’s no dispute about that fact. That's what he said. But if he's
SO intoxicated that he doesn’t form that intent, he doesn’t say that. He sits there
silently just saying, | don’'t remember what happened because | was so wasted.
And that is why we know beyond a reasonable doubt this is what he wanted to do.
He repeatedly said over and over again he wanted to kill these people.

And that's another question. Why do you think he said all those
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things once lodged in that church? The answer is, when you look at the very
definition of attempted murder, it's the “performance of an act which tends but fails
to kill a human being.” The reason why he’'s saying to these people after he failed
to kill them, “I'm going to kill you,” is he recognized and realized he failed. He
failed at first. And so he made a communication to all of them, “I'm going to kill all
you people. You don’t know who you're messing with.” He's still trying to get that
car free to finish the job.
Do not let the Defendant backpedal. Do not let him off the hook.

Hold him responsible for this absolutely senseless act that terrified countless
people, broke a little girl’s foot and injured her mother. Do justice for all of these
victims. Find him guilty on all counts. Thank you.

THE COURT: Will the marshal please take charge of the jury now.

(Pause)

THE COURT: Is he out there?

MR. SCOW: No, ma’am. | checked chambers behind us. He's not there.
I'm assuming that possibly he may be in the restroom, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Well, | will swear you in, and then we’ll swear him in.

(The Marshal enters the courtroom)
(Clerk swears the Marshal and Recorder)
(Court and Marshal confer)

THE COURT: Thank you.

THE MARSHAL: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen of the jury, please grab
your notebooks, all your personal effects. Please follow me.

(Jury exits courtroom to deliberate)

(Out of the presence of the jury panel)
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THE COURT: The record will reflect the jury has departed the courtroom.
Are there any matters outside the presence?

MR. SCOW: No, Your Honor.

MR. POSIN: No, Your Honor. | just am curious, assuming they're still
deliberating this afternoon, would you come back tomorrow or come back Monday
or --

THE COURT: Well, we're not coming back Saturday, | know, because that
would require lots of overtime, which we can't afford here. So we would bring them
back Monday, but it's only 12:30. | did ask --

MR. POSIN: Yeah, not expecting --

THE COURT: Let's ask them for lunch.

(Court and Clerk confer)

THE COURT: So when we call you, come back to the third floor courtroom
instead of here.

MR. POSIN: | like that courtroom better. It's (indiscernible).

THE COURT: This was never intended to be a courtroom. All right. Thank
you. We're off the record.

MR. HAMNER: Thank you.

[Proceeding concluded at 12:32 p.m.]

ATTEST: | do hereby certify that | have truly and correctly transcribed the
audio-visual recording of the proceeding in the above entitled case to the

best of my ability.
i “

Renee Vincent, Court Recorder/Transcriber
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ORIGINAL

BY.

FILED IN OPEN COURT
STEVEN D. GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT

SEP -9 2013

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintift,
-VS-

WILBURT HICKMAN, aka
William Hicks, #2888068

Defendant.

CASE NO:
DEPT NO:

Lo S

ANDREA DAVIS, DEPU

C-12-278699-1
v

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY (INSTRUCTION NO. 1)
MEMBERS OF THE JURY:

It is now my duty as judge to instruct you in the law that applies to this case. It is

your duty as jurors to follow these instructions and to apply the rules of law to the facts as

you find them from the evidence.

You must not be concerned with the wisdom of any rule of law stated in these

instructions. Regardless of any opinion you may have as to what the law ought to be, it

would be a violation of your oath to base a verdict upon any other view of the law than that

given in the instructions of the Court.
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INSTRUCTION NO.__ &
If, in these instructions, any rule, direction or idea is repeated or stated in different
ways, no emphasis thereon is intended by me and none may be inferred by you. For that
reason, you are not to single out any certain sentence or any individual point or instruction
and ignore the others, but you are to consider all the instructions as a whole and regard each
in the light of all the others.
The order in which the instructions are given has no significance as to their relative

importance.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. 3

An Information is but a formal method of accusing a person of a crime and is not of
itself any evidence of his guilt.

In this case, it is charged in an Information that on or about the 18th day of
December, 2011, the Defendant committed the offenses of ATTEMPT MURDER WITH
USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.010, 200.030, 193.330,
193.165); BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS
200.481); BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN
SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM (Category B Felony - NRS 200.481.2¢); ASSAULT
WITH A DEADLY WEAPON (Category B Felony - NRS 200.471) and BURGLARY
(Category B Felony - NRS 205.060), within the County of Clark, State of Nevada, contrary
to the form, force and effect of statutes in such cases made and provided, and against the
peace and dignity of the State of Nevada,

COUNT 1 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill ANNEESAH FRANKLIN, a human being, by striking the said
ANNEESAH FRANKLIN with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill ANYLA HOYE, a human being, by striking the said ANYLA
HOYE with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.

COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill ALLEN BURSE, a human being, by driving a Cadillac at or in the
direction of the said ALLEN BURSE with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.

COUNT 4 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and

feloniously attempt to kill WASHINGTON THOMPSON, a human being, by driving a
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Cadillac at or in the direction of the said WASHINGTON THOMPSON, being inside and/or
in front of the said ANTIOCH CHURCH with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.
COUNT 5 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill MARQUETTA JENKINS, a human being, by driving a Cadillac
at or in the direction of the said MARQUETTA JENKINS, being inside and/or in front of the
said ANTIOCH CHURCH with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.
COUNT 6 —- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill RAHMEKA ADAMS, a human being, by driving a Cadillac at or
in the direction of the said RAHMEKA ADAMS, being inside and/or in front of the said
ANTIOCH CHURCH with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.
COUNT 7 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill SHARON POWELL, a human being, by driving a Cadillac at or
in the direction of the said SHARON POWELL, being inside and/or in front of the said
ANTIOCH CHURCH with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.
COUNT 8 — ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there, without authority of law, and malice aforethought, willfully and
feloniously attempt to kill TIFFANY TRASS, a human being, by driving a Cadillac at or in
the direction of the said TIFFANY TRASS, being inside and/or in front of the said
ANTIOCH CHURCH with a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac.
COUNT 9 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously use force or violence upon
the person of another, to-wit: ANNEESAH FRANKLIN, with use of a deadly weapon, to-
wit: a Cadillac, by driving said Cadillac at an occupied building, striking the saiq
ANNEESAH FRANKLIN.
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COUNT 10 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN

SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully and feloniously use force or violence upon the
person of another, to-wit: ANYLA HOYE, age nine (9) years old, with use of a deadly
weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by driving said Cadillac through the entrance of the said
ANTIOCH CHURCH, resulting in substantial bodily harm to the said ANYLA HOYE.
COUNT 11 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON ]

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously and intentionally place another
person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm and/or did unlawfully attempt
to use physical force against another person, to-wit: ALLEN BURSE, with use of a deadly
weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by driving said Cadillac at the said ALLEN BURSE in an
attempt to strike him.

COUNT 12 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously and intentionally place another
person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm and/or did unlawfully attempt
to use physical force against another person, to-wit: WASHINGTON THOMPSON, with
use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by the said WASHINGTON THOMPSON,
being inside or in front of a church, having to move to the side to avoid Defendant, who
drove said Cadillac at the said WASHINGTON THOMPSON.

COUNT 13 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously and intentionally place another
person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm and/or did unlawfully attempt
to use physical force against another person, to-wit: MARQUETTA JENKINS, with use of
a deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by the said MARQUETTA JENKINS, being inside or
in front of a church, having to move to the side to avoid Defendant, who drove said Cadillac

at the said MARQUETTA JENKINS.
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COUNT 14 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously and intentionally place another
person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm and/or did unlawfully attempt
to use physical force against another person, to-wit: RAHMEKA ADAMS, with use of a
deadly weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by the said RAHMEKA ADAMS, being inside or in
front of a church, having to move to the side to avoid Defendant, who drove said Cadillac at
the said RAHMEKA ADAMS,
COUNT 15 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully and feloniously attempt to use physical force
against another person, to-wit; SHARON POWELL, with use of a deadly weapon, to-wit: a
Cadillac, by the said SHARON POWELL, being inside or in front of a church, having to
move to the side to avoid Defendant, who drove said Cadillac at the said SHARON
POWELL.
COUNT 16 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, feloniously and intentionally place another
person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm and/or did unlawfully attempt
to use physical force against another person, to-wit: TIFFANY TRASS, with use of a deadly
weapon, to-wit: a Cadillac, by the said TIFFANY TRASS, being inside or in front of a
church, having to move to the side to avoid Defendant, who drove said Cadillac at the said
TIFFANY TRASS.
COUNT 17 - BURGLARY

did then and there wilfully, unlawfully, and feloniously enter, with intent to commit a
felony, to-wit: Attempt Murder and/or Battery and/or Assault, that certain building occupied
by ANTIOCH CHURCH, located at 3950 North Las Vegas Boulevard, Las Vegas, Cl‘ark
County, Nevada.

It is the duty of the jury to apply the rules of law contained in these instructions to the
facts of the case and determine whether or not the Defendant is guilty of one or more of the

offenses charged.
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Each charge and the evidence pertaining to it should be considered separately. The
fact that you may find the Defendant guilty or not guilty as to one of the offenses charged

should not control your verdict as to any other offenses charged.
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INSTRUCTION NO. ﬁ

Attempted murder is the performance of an act or acts which tend, but fail, to kill a
human being, when such acts are done with express malice, namely, with the deliberate and
specific intention unlawfully to kill.

It is not necessary to prove the elements of premeditation and deliberation in order to

prove attempted murder.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 5
Express malice is that deliberate intention unlawfully to take away the life of a fellow

creature, which is manifested by external circumstances capable of proof.
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INSTRUCTION NO. é

If an illegal yet unintended act results from the intent to commit a crime, that act is
also considered illegal. Under the doctrine of “transferred intent”, original malice is
transferred from one against whom it was entertained to the person who actually suffers the
consequences of the unlawful act. For example, if a person intentionally directs force
against one person wrongfully but, instead, hits another, his intent is said to be transferred

from one to the other though he did not intend it in the first instance.
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INSTRUCTION NO. 7

During an attack upon a group, the intent to kill does not need to be directed at one
particular individual to find the defendant guilty of attempted murder, however, the jury
must still determine beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant had the specific intent to
kill someone in the group. Mere intent to harm or intimidate is not sufficient to warrant a

guility verdict.
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INSTRUCTIONNO., &

You are instructed that if you find a defendant guilty of Attempt Murder you must
also determine whether or not a deadly weapon was used in the commission of this crime.

If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that a deadly weapon was used in the
commission of such an offense, then you shall return the appropriate guilty verdict reflecting
“With Use of a Deadly Weapon™.

If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of such an
offense, but you find that it was committed, then you shall return the appropriate guilty

verdict reflecting that a deadly weapon was not used.
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INSTRUCTION NO.

"Deadly weapon" means:

(a) Any instrument which, if used in the ordinary manner contemplated by its
design and construction, will or is likely to cause substantial bodily harm
or death; or

(b) Any weapon, device, instrument, material or substance which, under the

circumstances in which it is used, attempted to be used or threatened to be
used, is readily capable of causing substantial bodily harm or death.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. 10

[—

Battery is the intentional and unwanted exertion of force or violence upon another,
however slight.

A Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon is any willful and unlawful use of force or
violence upon the person of another with the use of a deadly weapon.

If substantial bodily harm results to the victim of a battery, the crime committed is
Battery Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm.

If a Battery is committed with the use of a deadly weapon and it results in substantial

oo -1 N e W N

bodily harm, then the crime is Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in

—
<

Substantial Bodily Harm.
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Battery is the intentional and unwanted exertion of force or violence upon another,

P
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however slight,
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INSTRUCTION NO. __1!
As used in these instructions, "substantial bodily harm" means:
1. Bodily injury which creates a substantial risk of death or which causes serious,
permanent disfigurement or protracted loss or impairment of the function of any bodily
member or organ; or

2. Prolonged physical pain.

Appellant's Appendix 0275




O 00 ~1 N L b W N e

[ N T N T N T o T S T S R S S N o T e R
00 -~ O th B W M= O N 0 =) N =W N — O

INSTRUCTION NO. __ [}~
An Assault is unlawfully attempting to use physical force against another person, or
intentionally placing another person in reasonable apprehension of immediate bodily harm.

To constitute an assault, it is not necessary that any actual injury be inflicted.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. |3

—

You are instructed that if you find a defendant guilty of Assault, you must also

determine whether or not a deadly weapon was used in the commission of this crime.
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INSTRUCTIONNO. (Y

—

If you find beyond a reasonable doubt that a defendant committed Assault With the
Use of a Deadly Weapon, then you are instructed that the verdict of Assault With the Use of
a Deadly Weapon is the appropriate verdict.

If, however, you find that a deadly weapon was not used in the commission of the
Assault, but you do find that an Assault was committed, then you are instructed that the
verdict of Assault is the appropriate verdict.

You are instructed that you cannot return a verdict of both Assault With the Use of a
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Deadly Weapon and Assault.
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[y

Every person who, by day or night, enters any building or structure, with the intent to
commit a assault and/or battery and/or a felony therein is guilty of Burglary.

In Nevada, the crime of Attempt Murder is a felony.
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INSTRUCTION NO. /6

—

No act committed by a person while in a state of voluntary intoxication shall be
deemed less criminal by reason of his condition, but whenever the actual existence of any
particular intent is a necessary element to constitute a particular crime, the fact of his

intoxication may be taken into consideration in determining such intent.
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INSTRUCTION NO.__ | /
If the jury finds that the defendant, at the time of the crime, had, by drinking
intoxicating liquors, made himself incapable mentally of entertaining the specific intent to
kill, then he is not guilty of attempted murder. However if the defendant had the capacity to
form the intent to kill, and conceives and acts upon such intent, it is not a defense to the

crime of attempted murder that he was intoxicated.
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INSTRUCTION NO.
Battery is a general intent crime. Therefore, any claim, or evidence of drinking

alcohol or voluntary intoxication by the defendant is no defense to a charge of Battery.
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INSTRUCTION NO. [ 7

When a person is accused of committing a particular crime and at the same time and
by the same conduct may have committed another offense of lesser grade
or degree, the latter is with respect to the former, a lesser included offense.

If you are not satisfied beyond a reasonable doubt that the defendant is guilty of the
offense charged, he may, however, be found guilty of any lesser included offense, if the
evidence is sufficient to establish his guilt of such lesser offense beyond a reasonable doubt.

The offense of Battery With a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm,
necessarily includes the lesser offenses of Battery With a Deadly Weapon and/or Battery

Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm and/or Battery.
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INSTRUCTION NO. RO

f—

To constitute the crime charged, there must exist a union or joint operation of an act

forbidden by law and an intent to do the act.

The intent with which an act is done is shown by the facts and circumstances
surrounding the case.

Do not confuse intent with motive. Motive 1s what prompts a person to act. Intent
refers only to the state of mind with which the act is done.

Motive is not an element of the crime charged and the State is not required to prove a

o B =T V. T - S VS S OV

motive on the part of the Defendant in order to convict. However, you may consider

evidence of motive or lack of motive as a circumstance in the case.
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INSTRUCTION NO._ 1

The Defendant is presumed innocent until the contrary is proved. This presumption
places upon the State the burden of proving beyond a reasonable doubt every material
element of the crime charged and that the Defendant is the person who committed the
offense.

A reasonable doubt is one based on reason. It is not mere possible doubt but is such a
doubt as would govern or control a person in the more weighty affairs of life. If the minds of
the jurors, after the entire comparison and consideration of all the evidence, are in such a
condition that they can say they feel an abiding conviction of the truth of the charge, there is
not a reasonable doubt. Doubt to be reasonable must be actual, not mere possibility or
speculation.

If you have a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the Defendant, he is entitled to a

verdict of not guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. _~3—
It is a constitutional right of a defendant in a criminal trial that he may not be
compelled to testify. Thus, the decision as to whether he should testify is left to the
Defendant on the advice and counsel of his attorney. You must not draw any inference of
guilt from the fact that he does not testify, nor should this fact be discussed by you or enter

into your deliberations in any way.
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INSTRUCTION NO._2+3

The evidence which you are to consider in this case consists of the testimony of the
witnesses, the exhibits, and any facts admitted or agreed to by counsel.

There are two types of evidence; direct and circumstantial. Direct evidence is the
testimony of a person who claims to have personal knowledge of the commission of the
crime which has been charged, such as an eyewitness. Circumstantial evidence is the proof
of a chain of facts and circumstances which tend to show whether the Defendant is guilty or
not guilty., The law makes no distinction between the weight to be given either direct or
circumstantial evidence. Therefore, all of the evidence in the case, including the
circumstantial evidence, should be considered by you in arriving at your verdict.

Statements, arguments and opinions of counsel are not evidence in the case.
However, if the attorneys stipulate to the existence of a fact, you must accept the stipulation
as evidence and regard that fact as proved.

You must not speculate to be true any insinuations suggested by a question asked a
witness. A question is not evidence and may be considered only as it supplies meaning to
the answer.

You must disregard any evidence to which an objection was sustained by the court

and any evidence ordered stricken by the court.

Anything you may have seen or heard outside the courtroom is not evidence and must

1

also be disregarded.
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INSTRUCTION NO._2¢

The credibility or believability of a witness should be determined by his or her
manner upon the stand, his or her relationship to the parties, his or her fears, motives,
interests or feelings, his or her opportunity to have observed the matter to which he or she
testified, the reasonableness of his or her statements and the strength or weakness of his or
her recollections.

If you believe that a witness has lied about any material fact in the case, you may
disregard the entire testimony of that witness or any portion of his testimony which is not

proved by other evidence.
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INSTRUCTION NO._ 5

Although you are to consider only the evidence in the case in reaching a verdict, you
must bring to the consideration of the evidence your everyday common sense and judgment
as reasonable men and women. Thus, you are not limited solely to what you see and hear as
the witnesses testify. You may draw reasonable inferences from the evidence which you feel
are justified in the light of common experience, keeping in mind that such inferences should
not be based on speculation or guess.

A verdict may never be influenced by sympathy, prejudice or public opinion. Your
decision should be the product of sincere judgment and sound discretion in accordance with

these rules of law.
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INSTRUCTION No._# ¢
In your deliberation you may not discuss or consider the subject of punishment, as
that is a matter which lies solely with the court. Your duty is confined to the determination

of whether the Defendant is guilty or not guilty.
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INSTRUCTION NO. o/

—

When you retire to consider your verdict, you must select one of your number to act
as foreperson who will preside over your deliberation and will be your spokesperson here in
court.

During your deliberation, you will have all the exhibits which were admitted into

evidence, these written instructions and forms of verdict which have been prepared for your
convenience.

Your verdict must be unanimous. As soon as you have agreed upon a verdict, have it

oo 1 Sy b R W

signed and dated by your foreperson and then return with it to this room.
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INSTRUCTION NO, &

[a—

If, during your deliberation, you should desire to be further informed on any point of

Il law or hear again portions of the testimony, you must reduce your request to writing signed
by the foreperson. The officer will then return you to court where the information sought
will be given you in the presence of, and after notice to, the district attorney and the
Defendant and his counsel.

Playbacks of testimony are time-consuming and are not encouraged unless you deem

it a necessity. Should you require a playback, you must carefully describe the testimony to

(T= T - R N e Y L A

be played back so that the court recorder can arrange her notes. Remember, the court is not

—
<

at liberty to supplement the evidence.
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INSTRUCTION NO._2 1
Now you will listen to the arguments of counsel who will endeavor to aid you to
reach a proper verdict by refreshing in your minds the evidence and by showing the
application thereof to the law; but, whatever counsel may say, you will bear in mind that it is
your duty to be governed in your deliberation by the evidence as you understand it and
remember it to be and by the law as given to you in these instructions, with the sole, fixed
and steadfast purpose of doing equal and exact justice between the Defendant and the State

of Nevada.

GIVEN: i
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ORIGINAL  miaamierencouer

PINU CLERK OF THE COURT

SEP -6

BY -

ANDREA DAVIS, DEPUTY]

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* k kX

STATE OF NEVADA CASE NO.: C-12-278699-1
VS
WILBURT HICKMAN DEPARTMENT 5

DEFENDANT’S PROPOSED JURY INSTRUCTIONS NOT USED AT TRIAL

Attached hereto are the proposed jury instructions which were offered to the
Court, but not submitted to the jury in the above entitled action.

DATED: This 6th day of September, 2013.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

|
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JURY INSTRUCTION NO. 12

If the jury believes from the evidence that the condition of the defendant, from
intoxication er-otirerwise, was such to show that there was no specific intention to cause the

death of an individual, they cannot find the defendant guilty of attempted murder. "

o~

Df’{(‘ﬂrt })ru/)w"{.ﬁ /)W;L no/’ 7’“/:('\,‘

[l B

I2NRS 193.220 When voluntary intoxication may be considered.
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JURY INSTRUCTION NO. 13

In order to convict the defendant of attempted murder, the jury must find either that the
defendant was in control of his mental faculties and entertained an intent to kill when the crime
occurred, or that he had formed this intent before he lost control of his faculties, mere intent to

harm or intimidate is not sufficient to warrant a guilty verdict for attempted murder.” “Nothing

wld

less than a criminal intent to kill must be shown.

D€'~Fﬂn1e f’VOJOOin b f no f 7“’“‘\,

13 Ford v. State, 102 Nev. 136 (1986).

" Keys v. State, 104 Nev. 739 (1988).
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FILED IN OPEN COURT
STEVEN D. GRIERSON
CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT SEP -9 2013

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA _ /u \%ﬂ/«

THE STATE OF NEVADA, ANDREA DAVIS, DEPUTY
Plaintiff, CASE NO: (C-12-278699-1

-VS- DEPTNO: V

WILBURT HICKMAN, aka
William Hicks, #0905481

Defendant.

VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitled case, find the Defendant WILBURT HICKMAN, as

follows:

COUNT 1- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(ANNEESAH FRANKLIN)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder
Not Guilty

COUNT 2 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(ANYLA HOYE)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder
Not Guilty
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COUNT 3 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(ALLEN BURSE)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder

Not Guilty

COUNT 4 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(WASHINGTON THOMPSON)})

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder

Not Guilty

COUNT 5- ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(MARQUETTA JENKINS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder

Not Guilty

COUNT 6 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(RAHMEKA ADAMS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder

Not Guilty

COUNT 7 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON
(SHARON POWELL)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Attempt Murder
[ ] Not Guilty
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COUNT 8 - ATTEMPT MURDER WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(TIFFANY TRASS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Guilty of Attempt Murder With Use of a Deadly Weapon
Guilty of Attempt Murder
Not Guilty

COUNT 9 - BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON

(ANNEESAH FRANKLIN)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

J/

Guilty of Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Battery
Not Guilty

COUNT 10 -BATTERY WITH USE OF A DEADLY WEAPON RESULTING IN

SUBSTANTIAL BODILY HARM
(ANYLA HOYE)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

Y

Guilty of Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon Resulting in Substantial
Bodily Harm

Guilty of Battery With Use of a Deadly Weapon
Guilty of Battery Resulting in Substantial Bodily Harm
Guilty of Battery

Not Guilty

COUNT 11 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

(ALLEN BURSE)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

J

Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon
Guilty of Assault
Not Guilty
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COUNT 12 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON

(WASHINGTON THOMPSON)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

v | Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Assault

Not Guiity

COUNT 13 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(MARQUETTA JENKINS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)
V| Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon
Guilty of Assault

Not Guilty

COUNT 14 — ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(RAHMEKA ADAMS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

J | Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Assault
Not Guilty

COUNT 15 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(SHARON POWELL)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

\/‘ Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Assault

Not Guilty

COUNT 16 - ASSAULT WITH A DEADLY WEAPON
(TIFFANY TRASS)

(please check the appropriate box, select only one)

J | Guilty of Assault With Use of a Deadly Weapon

Guilty of Assault

Not Guilty
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